ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 29, 2004
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 366
"An Act relating to rat racing charitable gam ng; and providing
for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 329

"An Act relating to retirenment incentive prograns for the public
enpl oyees' retirenent system the judicial retirenent system
and the teachers' retirement system relating to separation
incentives for certain state enployees; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 366

SHORT TI TLE: RAT RACI NG CHARI TABLE GAM NG
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) STOLTZE

01/ 12/ 04 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) STA, FIN

01/ 29/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 29, 2004



BILL: HB 329
SHORT TI TLE: RETI REMENT | NCENTI VE PROGRAM
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) MCGUI RE

05/ 21/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
05/ 21/ 03 (H) STA, L&C, FIN

01/ 13/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

01/ 13/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

01/ 29/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

W TNESS REG STER

KELLY HUBER, St aff

to Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
Stoltze, sponsor of HB 366.

DAVE LAMBERT, Enerald Isle

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded sone history regarding rat racing
during the hearing on HB 366.

KENNETH AXEMAKER, House Conmittee Chair

Pal ner El ks Lodge

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Described the rat races, |listed the
[ nonprofit] activities that benefit from the races, and asked
for the conmttee's support of HB 366.

LARRY MEYERS, Deputy Director

Central Ofice

Tax Division

Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that HB 366 [would] rectify a
problem that exists in regard to permtting, and said the bill
makes it clear what the departnment can do.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

to Representative Lesil MGuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 329, on
behal f of Representative MCGuire, sponsor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 29, 2004



LUKE HOPKI NS

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself in support
of HB 329.

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Lobbyi st

for Teansters Local 959

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Teansters Local
959 in support of HB 329.

RON RUCKER, Presi dent

Cl assi fied Enpl oyees Associ ation

Mat anuska- Susi tna (Mat-Su) School District

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 329.

ROBERT DOYLE, Chief School Adm nistrator

Mat anuska- Susi t na ( Mat-Su) Borough School District

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions and testified on behalf
of an excess of 1,500 enployees and 14,000 students in support
of HB 329, Version H

M KE CHM ELEWSKI , Presi dent

Mat anuska- Susitna (Mat-Su) Borough School Board

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Underlined the school board' s support for
HB 329 and for the remarks nade by M. Doyle; answered
guesti ons.

FATE PUTMAN, Lobbyi st

for the Alaska State Enployees Association/Anerican Federation
of State, County, and Munici pal Enpl oyees (ASEA/ AFSCME) Local 52
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behal f of ASEA/ AFSCVE duri ng
the hearing on HB 329; suggested changes to Version H

JEFF BARNHART

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described HB 329 as a positive bill that
allows for the downsizing of state governnment, while having a
positive econom c inpact on |ocal comunities.

JACK KREI NHEDER, Chi ef Anal yst

Ofice of the Director
O fice of Managenent & Budget

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 29, 2004



O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding the fiscal
note he prepared for HB 329.

MELANI E M LLHORN, Director

Heal th Benefits Section

Division of Retirenent & Benefits

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the division has a neutra
position with regard to HB 329.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-09, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Coghill, and Wyhrauch were present at the call to
order. Representatives Lynn, Berkowitz, and G uenberg arrived
as the neeting was in progress.

HB 366- RAT RACI NG CHARI TABLE GAM NG

Number 0050

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 366, "An Act relating to rat racing charitable
gam ng; and providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt HB 366, Version 23-
LS1373\D, as a work draft. There being no objections, it was so
or der ed.

Nunber 0120

KELLY HUBER, Staff to Representative Bill Stoltze, Al aska State
Legislature, testified on behalf of Representative Stoltze,
sponsor of HR 366. She stated that the proposed |egislation
would allow the Palner Elks club to continue rat races at the
Al aska State Fair [held in Palner]. She described the rat races
as a gane of chance that has been in existence for over 50
years.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 29, 2004



MS. HUBER expl ained that over the years, as the gam ng statutes
have been anended, |anguage which allowed "these ganes" to be
permtted by the Departnent of Revenue has been inadvertently
omtted. She added that as far as "we" know, the om ssions were

not intentional. She said a couple of years ago the attorney
general's office issued an opinion stating that [the om ssion be
corrected] or the [rat race] games could not continue. The

proposed |egislation would fix the omssion and allow the rat
races to continue, she reiterated.

M5. HUBER noted that the proceeds fromthe rat races go to | ocal
charities. She offered to answer questions fromthe commttee.

Number 0225

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if the opinion expressed by the attorney
general was a formal one or an infornmal one.

M5. HUBER noted that it had been issued as a nenorandum and she
surmsed that it was an informal opinion. She added, "However,
we have had discussions with the Departnent of Law, and they
believe strongly that we need to clarify and fix it in statute.”
In response to a request made by Chair Wyhrauch, she agreed to
make available to the conmttee copies of the attorney general's
opi ni on.

Nunmber 0296

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked, "I'f this rat race occurred before
statehood, would it have to be in statute?"

M5. HUBER noted that [the rat race] did occur before statehood.
She explained that the attorney general's office "does not
believe that that will fix the problem"”

Number 0409

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if there have been any threats from
PETA [People for the Ethical Treatnent of Aninmals] to boycott
tourism in Alaska, for exanple, if the use of the rats or
gerbils for rat racing continues.

M5. HUBER replied that there has been no contact [by PETA].
Furthernore, she stated that there are nmany gerbils used at the
state fair, and the gerbils are rotated on a regular basis;
therefore, it is a very humane treatnent of aninmals.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 29, 2004



Nunmber 0485

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that only rats are listed in the
title of the bill, while gerbils are nentioned in the body of
the bill. He offered his understanding that they are "not the
same critters.”

M5. HUBER answered that Representative Berkowitz is correct.
She explained that "the rat race" has been the title of the race
run by the Palmer Elks club for years. She added that the
distinction [regarding use of rats or gerbils] is "nade in the
definition.™

Number 0554

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if M. Huber would have any objection
to the Tanana Valley State Fair [being included in the
| egi sl ation].

M5. HUBER responded that Representative Stoltze would consider
that as a friendly anmendnent. She noted that "they" contacted
Representative Stoltze's office after "this piece of |egislation
was i ntroduced. "

Nunber 0609

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked about ganmes of chance and vi deo.

M5. HUBER replied that the sponsor does not intend to expand
gam ng through [HB 366]; his goal was only to deal with ganes of
chance "of this nature" that have been going on for decades.
Nunber 0641

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON turned to Section 4 of the bill. He asked
for confirmation that the idea behind this is that it wouldn't
open cockfights in Al aska, for exanple.

M5. HUBER answered that's correct.

Nunber 0681

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Ms. Huber if she has researched

other places where "groups like this" have been specifically
naned in statute.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 29, 2004



M5. HUBER answered that she has not; however, she noted that
[ Legislative Legal and Research Services] believes that the
current drafting is the best. She noted that there are a | ot of
specifics regarding "the exact ganme" in statute. She i ndi cat ed
that the name of the group is "actually the nane of the event."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the same group [from the Al aska
State Fair] cones up to the Tanana Valley Fair, or whether a new
group needs to be naned.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Representative Holmif rat racing is being
done at the Tanana [Valley] Fair.

Number 0758

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM offered his understanding that the Tanana
Valley Fair has held rat races in the past; however, he said he
doesn't know who was conducting them

Nunmber 0838

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that there are pig races at the fair that
is held in Haines.

Nunmber 0864

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ reported that the entire section of AS
15.56.90 is "littered wth specific references to various
organi zations across the state." He offered some exanpl es. He

concluded, "This is your directory for fun in Al aska."

Nunber 0935

M5. HUBER noted that, should the Palnmer El ks club choose not to
continue the rat races, the gane would cease. She reiterated
that the bill was not intended for expansion, but to allow

sonet hing that has been happening for decades to continue. She
offered her belief that if the pig races in Haines have been
around as long as the rat races, the sponsor would not have any
objection [to adding themto the bill].

Nunber 0970
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated his concern regarding the renova
of the |language specifying a specific race, because, as it

currently stands, the rat race is conducted a certain way, and
that may change if that |anguage is renoved. He referred to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 29, 2004



Representative Lynn's previous nention of PETA [regarding the
guestion of whether animals are ill used or not]. He clarified
that he is arguing to continue to keep the bill "very defined."

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN clarified that [when he had previously
menti oned PETA] he was "just being facetious, obviously."

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH tol d Representative Lynn, "It's [an] unfortunate
state of affairs, though, that what we think of as facetious
sonetinmes people think is deadly serious. And who knows where
things can go, particularly with groups |like [PETA]."

Nunmber 1096

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ stated that HB 366 seens |like a pretty
straightforward bit of |egislation. He noted that the genera
section regarding issuance of permts and |icenses allows the
departnent to issue permts to qualified people. He noted that
that is found in AS 15.50. 100.

M5. HUBER, in response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch, noted
that the rat races take place at the Alaska State Fair all day
| ong at a boot h. The fair runs from the end of August through
the begi nning of Septenber. She reiterated that the funds go to
hel p I ocal charities.

Number 1217

DAVE LAMBERT, Enerald Isle, told the conmttee that he operated
the rat race at the Tanana Valley Fair in the past for several
different "nonprofits.” He stated he thinks it's inportant for
the commttee to understand "how we got to this point" and why
the legislation is needed. He continued as foll ows:

Even though the rat race took place before 1959, the
| egi sl ators back then - when they passed statutes that

al l oned nunmbers wheels - they wanted to protect this
type of activity. So, the law that outlaws nunbers
wheel s says, "except where you use a rat, hanster, or
ot her animal." So, it's clearly defined in the

statute and allows it.

Two years ago, during the regulation process, we had a
little over-[zeal ous] bunny hugger that worked for the
departnent of gamng that wanted to do whatever they
could to stop the rat race. During the process,

he tried to introduce regulations that would make it

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 29, 2004



So restrictive that it couldn't be done. ... They had

a statewide conmttee from all over and nobody
supported any of his decisions. When the regul ations
finally came out, the rat race was banned. Thi s

individual went to the attorney general's office
saying, "Hey, this is our interpretation, can you give
us an opinion." It's not a decision - it's an
opinion. He was trying to do whatever he coul d.

It's traditionally been ... called the rat race. Rats
aren't very exciting. They stand there, and then they
run straight for a hole. Gerbils are a lot of fun.
They ... run around, play around, and they want to
find out what's in the hole. They'll go in the hole,
they'Il cone back - go to another hole; that's what
they like to do.

Nunmber 1380

MR. LAMBERT stated that originally, during the Tanana Valley
[State] Fair, there had been concern that there mght be sone
outcry fromanimal rights people. He indicated that many ani nal
rights groups were contacted, but no objection was found.
During the fair, he reported, there was a conplaint by an
i ndi vidual, and someone from the Fairbanks Northstar Borough
ani mal contr ol sent a veterinarian over. The vet's
determ nation was that all the gerbils were well cared for and
were "doing what gerbils do and having fun."

MR. LAMBERT said, "It was one of the mmjor attractions at the
fair." He noted that |ast year, when people arrived at the
fair, the nunber one question was, "Were is the rat race?" He
enphasi zed that he would like to have [the rat race] at the fair
[again], and he noted that in addition to conducting the race at
the fair, it also used to take place at special events. He said
t he Fairbanks Chanber of Commerce recently contacted him to ask
if the rat race could be done at one of its special events. He
said, "Well, in the past we could have. Now we can't."”

MR. LAMBERT stated his support of HB 366. He suggested that
Fai rbanks be included, and he also suggested that the race be

naned for his conmpany that runs it: Enerald Isle. Conversely,
M. Lanbert noted that if legislation is passed on "the sales
tax for the pull tabs,” it will put nost of the pull-tab places
out of business anyway; therefore, "that probably would not be a
good thing to tie a nane to it like that." He offered to answer
guesti ons.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 29, 2004



Number 1499

KENNETH AXEMAKER, House Conmmittee Chair, Palnmer El ks Lodge, told
the commttee that his |odge operates [the rat races]. He
stated that he seeks the commttee's support for HB 366.
Addressing previously stated questions, he said [the |odge] has
been scrutinized by individuals and groups who have found that
the [gerbils used by the Elks | odge] are treated just as well as
the ones in Fairbanks. He noted that the gerbils are returned
to their lives as pets at the end of the fair, in the sane
condition that they were in when they were purchased.

MR. AXEMAKER said the wagering that takes place at the fair is
in the anmount of 25 cents and is done by adults only. He said
it is not a big noney game, but nore l|like a carnival gane;
however, the funds that come fromit are "substantial." He told
the conmttee that the |odge has been involved in this activity
since the m d-50s. The volunteers who staff the booth get
nothing fromit but goodw ll, he said. The noney raised goes
entirely to local charities and activities. M. Axemaker
estimated that over the years that noney has "been in the
hundreds of thousands of dollars."

MR. AXEMAKER |isted the activities [that benefit from the
races], including the follow ng: vet erans' prograns, seniors
prograns, handicap progranms, food banks, [Anerican] Red Cross,
Boys and Grls clubs, drug awareness prograns, and school and
youth activities, as well as individuals in need. The | oss of
[rat racing] would be devastating to those charitable prograns.
He stated that at a tine when public funds for charities and
activities are being reduced, [the Elks] are being asked to do
nore and nore.

Nunmber 1656

MR. AXEMAKER, in response to a question by Representative
Coghill, clarified that the holes in the wheel are colored,
rat her than nunbered. He said he thinks [the Elks] would Iike
to continue as they have in the past, although he doesn't
necessarily object to changes [in the bill], as long as they
would be helpful and allow [the EIks] to continue [the rat
races].

Nunber 1726

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 29, 2004



LARRY MEYERS, Deputy Director, Central Ofice, Tax Division,
Department of Revenue, said he thinks the sponsor has clarified

"nost of the facts.” He stated that he thinks the bill is
pretty straightforward and [would] rectify a problem that exists
in regard to permtting. He said the bill makes it clear what

t he departnent can do.

Nunber 1773

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH stated his intent for the coonmttee to develop a
conceptual anmendnent in the form of a commttee substitute next
week and take action on it as soon as possible.

Nunber 1792

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON restated his concern regardi ng expansi on.
Nunber 1848

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that HB 366 was heard and hel d.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from8:26 a.m to 8:27 a.m

HB 329- RETI REMENT | NCENTI VE PROGRAM

[ Contai ns brief discussion of HB 211.]
Nunber 1853

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the l|ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 329, "An Act relating to retirenent incentive
prograns for the public enployees' retirenent system the
judicial retirenment system and the teachers' retirenent system
relating to separation incentives for certain state enployees;
and providing for an effective date.”

Number 1900

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 329, Version 23-LS1109\H, Craver, 1/28/04, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version H was before the
conmittee.

Number 1930

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Lesil MQire, Al aska
State Legislature, testified on Dbehalf of Representati ve

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 29, 2004



McCGuire, sponsor. He discussed changes made in Version H
First, he noted an inportant change is the elimnation of the
separation incentive program Next, M. Hlyard noted the dates
that are added within lines 4-9, on page 4, which read as
fol |l ows:

(1) to neet the age or service required for
eligibility for normal retirenent under AS 14.25.110
before July 1, 1990, or AS 39.35.370 before July 1,
1986, as appropri ate;

(2) to neet the age required for early
retirenment under AS 14.25.110 before July 1, 1990, or
AS 39. 35.370 before July 1, 1986, as appropriate;

(3) to reduce the actuarial adj ust nment
required for early retirement wunder AS 14.25.110
before July 1, 1990, or AS 39.35.370 before July 1,
1986, as appropriate;

MR. H LYARD said, "The inclusion of the tier dates - July 1,
1990, for the [Teachers'] Retirenment System [TRS] and July 1,
1986, for the Public [Enployees'] Retirement System [PERS] -
have the effect of Ilimting the applicability of this bil
entirely to Tier 1 enployees only."

Number 1997

MR. HI LYARD said [the sponsor], as a result of discussions with
several school districts wthin the state, has reduced sone of
the restrictions on reenpl oynent. He noted that that | anguage
is found on page 11, [lines 3-7], which read as foll ows:

(3) the individual mnmay accept enploynent
with a school district as a substitute teacher; and

(4) an individual who participated in the
teachers' retirement system may accept enploynent wth
a school district if the enploynent is on an hourly
basis and does not entitle the individual to receive
retirement, health, or |eave benefits.

MR. HI LYARD explained the concern of the school districts is
that while they seek potential cost savings in allowing their
senior teachers to retire from the system early, they my | ose
the experience held by those teachers which would nmake it
difficult to nmeet the demands of "no child left behind." M.
Hi | yard offered to answer questions.

Number 2132

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 29, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sai d:

When | was first contacted about the bill during the
interim the rationale for this bill was given through
a teacher retirenent system And ... actually, the
exanple that was given was [in regard to] a
superintendent and ... letting the superintendent
retire, and then designating that ... you had to hire

fromwithin the system

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned if by trying to hire less
expensive staff to fill posts [vacated by higher paid people] in
an effort to bal ance the budget, "we" would actually "build in a
systemthat is going to elimnate the broadest pool of people to
do those very highly skilled and necessary jobs." In response
to a question by M. Hilyard, he clarified that when he used the
word system he neant the Teachers' Retirenent System (TRS). He

added, "Excuse nme, no, what | nean is the hiring of a new
superi ntendent . " He remarked that it would have to be soneone
| ess expensive than the person "going out,"” otherwise "this
doesn't work for anybody.” He asked if that is correct.

MR. HI LYARD answered that woul d be correct.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he is trying to understand
how "we" get the nobst qualified people in the jobs if a
restriction exists [to hire less expensive enployees to fill
hi gher paid positions].

Nunber 2264

MR. HI LYARD responded that he was not aware that there was "t hat
specific limtation in place," nor was he aware that "such a
limtation would be included in this bill." He said he has not
been counsel ed by school admnistrators, for exanple, that that
is a concern. He indicated that the |anguage of the bil

regardi ng authorization states that the enployer may extend the
program but need not extend it to everybody. Therefore, he
explained, if the concern previously stated by Representative
Seaton is shared by a school district, it may opt not to "do the

program " M. Hlyard stated that once a school district,
muni ci pality, or state agency puts forward a plan for retirenent
i ncentive, t he conmmi ssi oner of [the Depar t ment of ]

Adm ni stration has to "sign off on it."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 29, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ stated he 1is concerned that the
| anguage gives the enployer too nuch discretion to determ ne
whi ch enpl oyees m ght receive the benefit. He asked M. Hilyard
if he has done an equal protection analysis. He opi ned,
"Equally situated people in this state, who are eligible,
deserve access to the sane legal rights and protections.”

MR. HLYARD replied that an equal protection analysis has not

been done. He said that, during the process of drafting the
bill and its CS [Version H now before the conmttee, "there was
no concern, particularly on the part of [Legislative Legal and
Research Services] about the accessibility.” He reveal ed that
[the sponsor] has been in close contact with the Al aska State
Enpl oyees Association (ASEA) while working on this bill, and
"that concern has been expressed.” He said the sponsor would

not oppose correcting the |anguage, and he suggested that it
woul d be up to the coomittee to nmake that decision.

Nunmber 2456
LUKE HOPKINS told the commttee that he is a nenber of PERS who

has been enployed by the University of Alaska for 30 years, and
he stated that he is testifying on behalf of hinself. He said

that, in his years with the University, he has seen other
retirement incentive prograns (R Ps) have positive outconmes for
enpl oyees and enpl oyers. In his area of work, he noted, it

appears that the changes that the RIP allowed to occur in the
| abor pool acted not only as a savings in |abor, but in allow ng
entry-level positions to be advertised and filled. He added,
"W were able to have a few nore enployees in that area.”

MR. HOPKINS asked the conmmttee to support the bill. He
posited, "It <could be a budget tool wused both in state
departnments and l|ocal entities.” He stated his wunderstanding

that past [RIP] actions have reduced operational budget costs.
Nunber 2590

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Lobbyist for Teansters Local 959, stated
that that group supports HB 329. She said that, while the
majority of Teansters Local 959 "rank and file nenbers” around
the state are actually private sector enployees, Teansters Local
959 does represent public sector enployees within the Cty of
Anchor age. She surmised that at least two of the committee
menbers is famliar with the $31-plus mllion budget shortfall
that Anchorage is dealing wth. She stated that the Teansters
Local 959 believes that [HB 329] is a tool and an opportunity

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 29, 2004



for individuals to retire early from municipal jobs and allow
enployers to bring in new enployees at a |ower pay than soneone
who has been working for the city for 25 years. She added, " Not
many within the nunicipality have participated under the old
bill, because it was found ... not to be cost effective in many
of the areas.”

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS, in response to a request by Chair Wyhrauch
clarified that there was a RIP in place about 4 or 5 years ago,
and that was what she previously referenced.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked why the old program was not cost
ef fective.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS responded, "There were certain requirenents
that had to be net, as far as the actuary costs to the plan
itself, and then | ooking at the positions.” She said she thinks
in sone areas it was found to cost the enployee too nuch. For
exanpl e, she said that for enployees in the City of Anchorage to
partici pate costs between $40-50, 000. She said, "Wen you take
that three-year period of time and you do a cost calculation,
for some folks it actually may be worth paying that kind of
noney. For others - they didn't feel that it was cost-effective
for themto do it."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the inpact is threefold and
affects the enpl oyee, the enployer, and the fund. He stated his
concern is inregard to the latter.

Nunmber 2783

RON  RUCKER, Presi dent, Classified Enpl oyees  Associ ati on,
Mat anuska- Susitna (Mat-Su) School District, testified in support
of HB 329. He stated that his true purpose for participating is
to support the upcomng testinony from Bob Doyle, who is the
district's chief school adm nistrator.

Number 2833

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Rucker to explain how HB 329
saves noney "over the elimnation of those positions.™

MR. RUCKER replied that that's a good question that he does not

know if he can answer. He offered the perspective of the
enpl oyees as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- January 29, 2004



If the district, because of the high cost of l|long-term
enpl oyees, has to term nate those enpl oyees, then, for
i nstance, custodians who two years ago were cleaning
25,000 square feet of building each night are now
cl eani ng 35, 000. Through a termnation process, the
few ones who remain will be probably cleaning 45 or
50, 000 square feet.

MR. RUCKER said that if the higher-cost enployees are allowed to
retire, then the district nay be able to [hire] sone | ower-cost
enpl oyees and keep that workload down. He described [the
current situation] as a spiraling trend down, where each
enpl oyee is being required to do nore and nore. Classroom sizes
are increasing and the amount of work that each enployee has to
do to keep the system running is increasing. He indicated that
getting higher-cost enployees off the payroll in a positive
manner, both for the enployee and the enployer, would allow the
enpl oyer to hire sonme positions back and decrease overall costs,
while still maintaining a reasonabl e nunber of enpl oyees.

Nunber 2920

ROBERT DOYLE, Chief School Admnistrator, Matanuska-Susitna
(Mat-Su) Borough School District, testified on behalf of an
excess of 1,500 enployees and 14,000 students in support of HB
329, Version H. He revealed that he has been in the school
district for the last 22 years, and he stated that he is aware
of the cost savings fromthe last two state RIPs. He indicated
[his district] has not [offered] local RIPs |Iike the Anchorage
School District has, but said there will be discussion about
"those kinds of things." He offered an exanple.

TAPE 04-09, SIDE B
Nunber 2977

MR. DOYLE said, "W have seen long-term savings." For exanple,
by retiring a teacher who is being paid $60,000 or nore, and
hiring a teacher at $35,000 to $40,000, the nunber of layoffs
will be reduced. He indicated that it would be possible to try
to mtigate the class size, and he said there are benefits for
the children, as well as the enpl oyees.

MR. DOYLE said "we" believe in giving school boards the option
to participate [in the R P]. In the past, he indicated, a cost
savings [analysis] has always been [required] that shows a
savi ngs cal cul ated over three to five years.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 29, 2004



Number 2900

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked M. Doyle to provide a quantitative
anal ysis of how HB 329 would be applied and what it's economc
impact would be to his district, as well as "how it would be
used to benefit students, teachers, the district, and the
state.”

MR. DOYLE noted that [the school district] has submtted in
witing what it thinks is inportant to consider: 40 percent of
its enployees are eligible for such a retirenent programand its
current salary and benefits cost are at 90 percent of its

budget . He noted that because [choosing to RIP] is an option
for enployees, the district will be making its calculations of
what noney will be saved, based on [an estimation of how nmany
enpl oyees will choose the RIP], and then calculate that in terns

of "what it could possibly offset in budget cuts.”

Nunmber 2844

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON revealed that he has been involved in
teacher hiring policies in the past. He noted that the teacher
sel ection process has always been focused on the best qualified,
which is often those teachers with the nobst experience. He
guestioned, "Are we putting into place a systemthat |lets people
know that, if you' ve got nuch experience as a teacher, don't
apply to the district, because the purpose of this is to nove
out highly experienced teachers and bring in those ... wth

| esser experience?”
Number 2785

MR. DOYLE said page 11 of HB 329 addresses "the issues under 'no
child left behind,"" and [the district] believes that it can
keep its highly qualified teachers.

Nunber 2727

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that his wife has been teaching in the
school district for 27 years. He asked if it was M. Doyle's
opinion that the people that retire would stay in the area and
work as part-tinme teachers, for exanple, and not |eave the
state. He posited, "If you encourage ... the younger generation

., you change the capacity of school districts because of the
di sci pline changes that have occurred over the last 30 or 40
years." He indicated that the change affects the ability to
really teach. He asked M. Doyle to explain, as an

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 29, 2004



adm nistrator, what he is trying to acconplish. He stated his
concern is that "we're making a tradeoff in education quality
for economcs."

Nunmber 2593

MR. DOYLE said his wife is teaching a conbination second and
third grade [class] of 28 students, including disabled students
and enotionally and behaviorally disturbed students, "which
cause big inpacts.” He stated the board's goal would be to
| ower class size, continue its strong staff developnment and
curriculum alignnment progranms, and continue the things that it
knows will inprove student | earning. Regar di ng teachers com ng
back to teach after retiring, he noted, for exanple, that those
teachers' health insurance is provided by the retirenment system
therefore, the district does not have to contribute to the
retirement system which reduces 12 percent of the cost. He
enphasi zed that the district's nunber one goal is to focus its
efforts to inprove student Ilearning, despite economc timnes
maki ng that tougher.

Number 2501

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he believes HB 211 was passed | ast
year to allow the teachers that had been retired through a RIP
to come back and teach at an hourly [rate]. He asked M. Doyle
if he has experienced any influx of teachers com ng back on the
hourly basis in his district.

MR. DOYLE estimated that there have been five to ten. He
offered his understanding that the expiration date on HB 211 may
be 2005. He said [HB 329] "extends that window a little bit
farther." He noted that his district has not participated in
any big district-sponsored retirenment [prograns], as Anchorage
has done; therefore, it has not had as nmany retirees as sone
ot her districts. He stated that his district is particularly
concerned about its hard-to-fill special education positions,
which is where sone of the retirees have conme back to worKk.

Nunber 2421

M KE CHM ELEWSKI, President, WMatanuska-Susitna (Mt-Su) Borough
School Board, offered two points: First, he underlined the
school board's support for HB 329 and for "everything that M.
Doyle has testified to." He said the board is interested to
have [the R P] option available; [that option] becones an
important tool in facing upcom ng budget deci sions. Second, he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 29, 2004



revealed that he had retired under the RIP in 1999. He stated
that he is aware of the process a nunber of people nade at the
time to make the decision [whether to retire under the RIP, or
not | . He offered his understanding that not everyone eligible
to retire did, but nmany did, which benefited the district at
that tine. In the last four years, he noted, he has seen a
nunber of people who retired return to enploynent, particularly
to areas such as special education - a hard to fill area. He
stated that he is aware of individuals who are currently
contenplating retirenent.

MR, CHM ELEWSKI stated that when there are over 40 percent of
certified teachers at the top of the scale, what's revealed is

that there is a "bulge.” He added, "And anything we can do to
help flatten that out so that we have a nore normal popul ation
of certified staffing is going to be helpful.” M. Chm el ewski

said his experience suggests that having a bal anced spectrum of
people is particularly inportant.

Nunber 2291

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Chm el ewski how inportant "this
targeted offer” is versus a bl anket extension to everyone.

MR. CHM ELEWSKI answered that the board is particularly aware

that individuals wll make this choice, and it would like to
make the choice available to as many people as possible. He
said, "I don't think we're contenplating a highly restrictive

targeting of this incentive."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the language in the bill on
page 2, line 10, which read as foll ows:

(3) in specific geographic |ocations; or

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Chmelewski if he is "just as
happy with this as if it is a blanket offering to everyone."

MR. CHM ELEWBKI answered yes.

Nunber 2197

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked M. Chmelewski if he thinks there
will be adm nistrative pressure to force people to retire at 20
years.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 29, 2004



MR. CHM ELEWSKI answered no. He said he saw no signs of [that
kind of pressure] in 1999 and he sees no benefit to be gained

[by it].
Nunmber 2168

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Chmelewski to explain the
purpose of the incentive. He clarified as foll ows:

If you have a large nunber of people who are eligible
to retire right now - and if they retire they can cone

back and participate on hourly basis ... - would you
explain to nme the benefit of this R P and how,
nonetarily, it helps both the district and the
individual, if they're already eligible for retiring
NOW.

MR. CHM ELEWSKI answered that the benefit to the individual is
the ability to retire and, if they choose, [come back and work].
He gave an exanple. He said it allows a person the flexibility
to work wthin the paranmeters of his/her life. In many cases,
he noted, people have found that they have enjoyed continuing
work and they are adding to their retirenment noney.

Number 2059

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he wants to know, if the
teachers are already qualified to retire, what benefit would a
RIP be to themand to the district?

MR. CHM ELEWSKI noted that at the present tine there are
approximately 30 people planning to retire [in the WMat-Su
district], and he said he knows of others who have expressed
interest in retiring if there were nore incentive to do so. He
deferred the question to M. Doyl e.

MR. DOYLE said it would not nmake a difference to those ready to
retire under the 20-year or 30-year retirenent. He added, "They

could, under this bill, get an additional three years; if they
paid their share and the district pays a share, you could
actually inprove that a little bit for an individual." He
stated that he thinks the issue for the school district is "the
vol une. " He said, "W have 27 now, | have 400 that are
eligible.™ He noted that the savings can be significant, even

if 100 of those take advantage to the RIP. He added that the
nunbers are very simlar to [the borough's] classified ranks, as

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 29, 2004



wel | . He concluded that a person should consider retirenent
when financially and socially ready to do so.

Nunber 1897

FATE  PUTMAN, Lobbyi st for the Alaska State Enmpl oyees
Associ ati on/ Anerican Federation of State, County, and Minicipa

Enpl oyees (ASEA/ AFSCVE) Local 52, told the conmittee that it has
been a pleasure for [ ASEA/AFSCME] to work with the sponsor of HB
329 to cone up with [Version H. He stated that [ASEA/ AFSCVE]

represents the general government unit of state enployees, which
is "the rank and file of state enployees" and nakes up the bulk
of the state enpl oyee union.

MR. PUTMAN expl ai ned that [ASEA/ AFSCME] is attenpting to get a
managenent tool to the adm nistration so it can, if it chooses,
downsi ze governnment [by offering] retirenent at 27 years to
seni or enployees on a 30-year [retirenent]. He al so noted that
[ ASEA/ AFSCMVE] also represents enpl oyees in the 20-year
retirement system and those enployees <could be offered
retirement at 17 years.

MR. PUTMAN suggested the conmttee consider a change to the
| anguage as foll ows:

Page 2, line 5

Bet ween "enpl oyer" and "extend"
Del ete "need not"

I nsert "shoul d"

MR. PUTMAN noted that [ASEA/ AFSCME] is also concerned about the

| anguage on page 2, line 10 [text previously provided]. He
stated that [ASEA/ AFSCVE] has found that it is difficult to find
enpl oyees to go out to rural Alaska [to work]. He expl ai ned

that [ASEA/ AFSCME] is concerned that the RIP will be offered
only to people who live in urban Al aska, and that, because of
the difficulty in finding enployees to work in rural Al aska, the
adm nistration won't offer the RIP to social workers who live in
Bet hel, for exanple. Ideally, he said, [ASEA/ AFSCME] woul d |ike
to see the R P made available to anyone who is a Tier |

enpl oyee. Notwi thstanding that, it understands that the
adm nistration needs the flexibility [in the areas of]
bargaining wunits, job [classifications], and admnistrative

conponents [listed in Section 2, paragraphs (1) and (2)];
however, it would |like to see [Section 2, paragraph (3)] renoved
fromthe |egislation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 29, 2004



Nunber 1746

MR. PUTMAN noted that the contribution rate for a 30-year
enployee is three tines his/her contribution to PERS, while a
state enployee in a 30-year system contributes 6.75 percent of
hi s/ her salary towards PERS annually, making that contribution
rate 20.25 percent. He added that "the 20-year enployees”
contribute 7.5 percent. Regarding a previous question by
Representative Guenberg about the PERS system M. Putman
stated the foll ow ng:

The contribution rate about eight years ago from the
state to the PERS system used to be about 12 percent.

The stock market was doing well, so they reduced the
enpl oyer contribution rate dowmn to as low as 3.5
percent. And because of the crash in the stock narket

and the increase in health insurance prem um costs,
the PERS account is short noney this year.

It is not the enployee who caused the problem the
enpl oyee's rate has always stayed the sane, and we've
actually continued to pay the same anount of noney.

But if you wll recall, about six years ago, the PERS
board voted to return noney to the state - ... | think
it was in the tune of about $12 mllion ... - for use

of other purposes, because they didn't need the noney.
So, that situation has reversed dramatically, and we
find ourselves in a situation where PERS does need
noney in order to be actuarially sound.

Nunber 1637

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned whether there should be an
amendnent to the PERS statute that would prohibit the pension

fund - really a trust fund - from "just turning noney over to
the state.” Perhaps a loan [could be considered], he opined,
but there should be "a fiduciary duty there." He stated that he

wants to ensure that the sanme thing cannot happen again.

MR. PUTMAN of fered his understanding that about 15 years ago the
PERS board did not exist and the admnistration controlled the
contri bution. A senator put in a bill to change it to a
citizens' PERS board, elected by the nenbers who benefit from
it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that he was in the |egislature
when this took place and he doesn't think anyone envisioned what

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 29, 2004



woul d happen at the tine. He stated, "Sonetinmes it's not

popul ar to protect a trust.” He added that he is "looking also
at the permanent fund here.” He asked M. Putman and the "fol ks
on line, too" to "look at this." He said, "It's a question of

timng, to a large extent, whether we can afford the draws on
these funds now if it's going to bust the bank [in] the next few
years."

Nunber 1487

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON referred to M. Put man's  previous
recoomendation to elimnate the |anguage on page 2, line 10,
because of a concern that [the RIP] will not be offered in areas
where it is difficult to fill enploynent. He said, "If this
| anguage is taken out, you see a potential for getting people
out of the very jobs we are having a hard tine filling." He
of fered an exanpl e. He asked, "Doesn't' this run contrary to

serving the best interest of the state to elimnate that
geographi c distinction?”

MR. PUTMAN replied that he understands Representative Seaton's
logic and agrees with himthat there are tinmes when it is hard
to find [enployees for rural jobs]. However, as a public
enpl oyee union, [ASEA/ AFSCME] wants all enployees to be treated
equal ly across the board, regardless of where they happen to be

wor ki ng. He said it would fall to the admnistration to
determine if it's feasible to offer a RIP to "that job class.”
He asked, for exanple, "lIs it fair to treat a social worker in

Anchorage [differently from a social worker in Bethel, because
that social worker has chosen to take the Bethel job?" He said
that fromthe perspective of [ASEA/ AFSCMVE], it isn't [fair].

Number 1300

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated it seens that what is wanted is [to
offer] retirenment at 17 years instead of 20 and at 27 years
instead of 30. He asked if it would acconplish the sane goal if
[the legislature] just changed the retirenent [in statute] to 17
and 27 years, respectively.

Nunber 1264
MR. PUTMAN offered his understanding that "you can't change the
retirement age." He said he believes the administration can't

change a contract that was nade with an enployee at the tine
t hat enpl oyee was originally hired.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- January 29, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that there are currently bills under
consideration to [change the retirenent] for fire fighters, for
exanpl e; therefore, he asked again whether M. Put nam s
organi zation thinks that adjusting the retirenment tine would
acconplish the sanme task as offering the RIP

MR PUTMAN answered, "I believe, under that scenario, it would

Nunber 1160

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said that leaving the specific geographic
| ocati on | anguage in t he bill woul dn' t pr event t he
adm nistration from making a determ nation on a case-by-case
basis regarding where it will apply [the R P]

MR. PUTMAN responded that is correct.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked what the benefit of deleting the |anguage
woul d be, in ternms of adding nore options.

MR.  PUTMAN noted that during the last RP, [the wearly
retirement] was not offered in areas of rural Al aska. He said
menbers [of ASEA/ AFSCMVE] brought concerns regarding this issue
to him He reiterated that [ASEA/ AFSCME] wants to see [the RIP]
of fered universally.

Nunber 1100

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasized that he wants to "think
about that anendnent.” He commented that he holds sone of the
same concerns. He said, "W have a duty to the people of the

state who are served by the public enpl oyees, also.”

MR. PUTMAN responded that [ASEA/ AFSCME|] understands that and
al so understands that the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee
is the commttee that decides policy regarding how to adm ni ster

"such things as this RIP." He said it is up to the conmttee to
decide if an anendnent [regarding the deletion of line 10, on
page 2] is sonething it wants to [adopt]. He added, "And |

believe that the sponsor is neutral on it."
Nunmber 1000
JEFF BARNHART, testifying on behalf of hinself, told the

commttee that he works for the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane
(ADF&G) in Kodiak, Alaska. He opined that HB 329 is a positive

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 29, 2004



bill, because it allows for the downsizing of state governnent,
Wi thout putting people in the unenploynent |[ine. At the sane
time, he said, the proposed legislation would provide a
consi derabl e cost savings to the state. Seni or enpl oyees at or
near retirement would be given an incentive to retire. "Less
senior" enployees who would have normally been laid off through
downsi zing would be given an opportunity to retain their jobs,
he not ed.

MR. BARNHART stated his point of view is that the bill would
have a positive economc inmpact on local comrunities and the
state as a whole, because "now we have those retiree dollars -
as well as the dollars fromthe state enpl oyees who were able to
retain their jobs - <circulating through our local and state
econony. "

MR. BARNHART turned to the "subjective |anguage” on page 2,
lines 4-12. He stated that he certainly would be in favor of
offering [the RIP] to all enployees who would qualify. He told
the commttee that the last tine a RIP was offered in Kodi ak,
there were three people in the ADF&G in Kodiak that qualified.
He posited that the nore people who take advantage of [a RIP],
t he bigger the positive inpact made to reduce the budget.

Number 0763

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH r emar ked that there is concern anong a nunber of
fishing organi zati ons that ADF&G can no |onger conpete with the
Nati onal Marine Fisheries Service and the federal government for
salaries and benefits. The question has been posed, he said,
regardi ng what can be done to keep highly qualified and skilled
enployees with ADF& to continue to nmanage the state's
fisheries, because "they seem to be bleeding over now to the
federal governnment, and we're losing that expertise.” He asked
M. Barnhart how [HB 329] woul d address that issue.

Nunmber 0692

MR.  BARNHART confirnmed that, over the vyears, the federa
governnent has paid nore than the state; therefore, a nunber of
enpl oyees have shifted from state to federal service. He
reiterated that those who are not senior enployees would be the
first to go [due to layoffs], while the nore senior people wth

the expertise would remain. If those senior people choose to
retire in the next year or tws, that expertise wll be |ost
anyhow, and the junior folks will be lost due to layoffs. He

said that would nmean, "then we've really lost."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- January 29, 2004



Number 0522

JACK KREI NHEDER, Chief Analyst, Ofice of the Drector, Ofice
of Managenent & Budget, Ofice of the Governor, told the
commttee that the fiscal note is an indetermnate one for a
nunber of reasons that are stated in the analysis. He said that
program is flexible and confirmed that it would be up to the
adm nistration and i ndividual conm ssioners  whet her t hey
participate; therefore, it is not possible to forecast how many
peopl e would retire under the program and what the savings would
be.

Number 0463

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if this bill is an inportant tool for
managers of state enployees to have in order to make budgets and
address issues regardi ng enpl oyees.

MR. KREINHEDER stated his preference would be to defer that
gquestion to the Departnment of Admnistration and to answer
guestions solely regarding the fiscal note.

Number 0379

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON indicated that nmany of the
positions that "we've been talking about”™ are ones

that will be cut. He nentioned an analysis given on
savings [included in the commttee packet], which he
said is based solely on "replacing ... each position
wth a B ... step.” He said he is trying to figure

out whether "that" has any reality to "the rea
potential of the fiscal note.”
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to a question by M.
Kr ei nheder, confirmed that he was referring to nmaterials
supplied by the sponsor.

MR. KREI NHEDER replied that he cannot comment directly on those
materials that he does not have; however, to the extent that he
under st ands Representative Seaton's question, he surm sed that
it sounds |ike the savings estinmate that were calcul ated based
on refilling positions at a B step, rather than elimnating
t hem

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that's correct.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 29, 2004



MR. KREI NHEDER said, given a nunber positions are elimnated
rather than be refilled at a B step, the savings would be
consi derably | arger. He said he has done research |ooking at
other states that have used R Ps and, not surprisingly, the
bi ggest savings are where positions can be elimnated rather
than refill ed.

Number 0175

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he would like to see an
analysis where the RIP doesn't cause the position to be
elimnated; rather, the position is going to be elimnated
anyway. He said that in nost of the school districts 30 to 50
teachers are being elimnated, but he is not seeing the analysis
to reflect "the actual circunstance that we're | ooking at."

MR. KREI NHEDER responded that the savings are greatest by |aying
people off, rather than through a R P. In a RIP, the enployer
has to contribute the full actuarial cost. The argunent for the
RIP is that it avoids layoffs and people are allowed to choose
to | eave.

Nunmber 0076

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that there are two considerations to
be made: econom c and social. He stated that what he is not
seeing is an actual analysis of the econom c considerations,
"Wth these positions already scheduled to be elimnated.” He
said he would |like to see that in a fiscal note.

The commttee took a brief at-ease.

TAPE 04-10, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he would like to see a fiscal
note based on the probable scenario of the elimnation of the
jobs in either case and the savings or cost through the
i mposition of a RIP programversus w thout.

MR. KREI NHEDER i nterjected that he assuned Representative Seaton
was referring to the State of Al aska as opposed to the school
districts, because the state wouldn't do a fiscal note on behalf
of the school districts.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that would be acceptable because he
nerely wanted to get to the anal ysis.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- January 29, 2004



MR. KREINHEDER recalled that the governor's 2005 budget is
| ooking at elimnating 400 positions, of which only about one-
third are currently filled. Therefore, there are 100-135 filled
positions that could potentially be elimnated. However, the
aforenentioned is subject to sone caveats such as attrition.
M. Kreinheder surmsed that Representative Seaton wanted to
know the potential savings fromelimnating the filled positions
as opposed to those enpl oyees being offered a RIP.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON agreed with M. Kreinheder's understanding
of what he was requesting.

MR. KREINHEDER clarified that it's a bit of an apples and
oranges situation because a nunber of the enployees in those 130
positions probably aren't eligible to participate in a RIP
because they are too young and don't have enough years of
servi ce.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON specified that what is being reviewed is
either elimnating positions or if there is a R P, then

positions will be elimnated and other [individuals] wll nove
into them

Number 0341

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sunmmarized [Representative Seaton's]
guestion as follows: "What are the inpacts of elimnating
enpl oyee A versus enployee B?" The [aforenentioned infornmation]
will allow the legislature to properly and logically analyze the

si tuation. Representati ve Gruenberg returned to viewing this as
a triangle in which there is the state enployer, the enpl oyees,
and the pension fund. He asked if M. Kreinheder represents the
pensi on fund.

MR. KREI NHEDER answered that he doesn't work for the pension
boards, which are admnistered by the respective PERS and TRS
boards with support from the administration, primarily through
the Division of Retirenent & Benefits.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested that wtnesses who could
advocate from the [PERS and TRS] perspectives be available to
the commttee.

Number 0606

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- January 29, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to the effect of changing the
[years of service necessary for retirenment] to 17 and 27 versus
a RIP.

MR. KREI NHEDER agreed that the state could legally reduce the
nunber of years of service for retirenment. However, the concern
is that doing a RIP every so nmany years is tantanmount to
reducing the years of service for retirenent and thus m ght even

encourage enployees to delay retirenent until the next RIP,
whi ch woul d have the opposite inpact of the RIP. Wth regard to
the fiscal inpact to the state, any enhancenent to the

retirement system such as reducing retirenent age, would cost
the state nore unless the enpl oyee contributions were increased.
However, he said he believes that an increase in enployee
contributions could only be done for new enpl oyees.

Number 0871

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, Health Benefits Section, Division of
Retirement & Benefits, Departnment of Adm nistration, in response
to Chair Wyhrauch, confirnmed that the division's actuarial
consul tant, Bob Reynolds, who is going to do a cost analysis on
HB 329, is a contractor. She informed the conmttee that Mercer
Human Resource Consulting has been the division's actuarial
consultant for approximtely 12 years. In further response to
Chair Weyhrauch, M. MIllhorn noted that M. Reynolds is
stationed out of Seattle, Washington.

M5. MLLHORN related to the conmttee that at this tinme the
division has a neutral position as it relates to HB 329.
However, the division contacted Mercer Human Resource Consulting
|l ast week and requested that it prepare a cost analysis
associated with HB 329. Mercer Human Resource Consulting hasn't
provided an estinmate with regard to the conpletion of the cost
anal ysi s.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH expressed the need to nove on this matter due to
the shortness of the session and the scrutiny that this
| egislation will receive.

Number 1045

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the cost analysis wll discuss
the elimnation of positions that he discussed earlier.

M5. MLLHORN pointed out that the [consulting firm would
identify the pool of individuals who are avail able. She said

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- January 29, 2004



she understood Representative Seaton to be requesting additional
analysis that would specifically review the elimnation [of
positions]. She highlighted that, as the legislation is
currently witten, it allows the enployer to produce a cost
savings in a nunber of different mechani sns.

CHAIR WVEYHRAUCH noted that the [committee] has a history of
reviewing RIP legislation, and therefore he asked if any of
t hese sort of cost-benefit anal ysis has been done.

M5. MLLHORN said that she has reviewed one of the earlier
| egi slative audits, which includes sone caveats that specify
that although the legislation had cost savings associated wth
it, depending on the case the savings seened a bit el usive.

Number 1228

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG commented that it would be helpful to
see the legislative audit to which M. MIllhorn referred.
Representative G uenberg requested that a session be devoted to
this legislation and that perhaps the House Special Conmttee on
Ways and Means be invited to participate.

[ HB 329 was heard and hel d. ]
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:54
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- January 29, 2004



